IN TH	IE SUPREME COURT OF	FLORIDA	FEB 1 1999
GUY HAMMOND,	:		CLERK, SUPREME COURT By Chief Deputy Clerk
Petitioner,	:		
VS.	:	Case No.	94,780
STATE OF FLORIDA,	:		
Respondent.	:		

t

3

:

3

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT

BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

JAMES MARION MOORMAN PUBLIC DEFENDER TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

TIMOTHY J. FERRERI Assistant Public Defender FLORIDA BAR NUMBER 0774022

Public Defender's Office Polk County Courthouse P. O. Box 9000--Drawer PD Bartow, FL 33831 (941) 534-4200

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER

TOPICAL

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On March 19, 1997, the State Attorney for the Twelfth Judicial Circuit, in and for Sarasota County, Florida, filed an amended information against the Petitioner, Guy Hammond, charging him with five counts of capital sexual battery, a violation of section 794.011, Florida Statutes (1995) and one count of committing a lewd/lascivious act in the presence of a child in violation of section 800.04(4), Florida Statutes (1995). The Petitioner had a jury trial before the Honorable Bob McDonald, Circuit Judge from March 10-13, 1997. The jury found the Petitioner guilty as charged The Petitioner appealed and on January 15, 1999, on all counts. the Second District Court of Appeal affirmed the Petitioner's conviction and sentence with a discussion as to one assignment of error regarding jury selection. <u>Hammond v. State</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D204 (Fla. 2d DCA January 15, 1999), Appendix A-1) Petitioner filed a notice to invoke the jurisdiction of this Court in the Second District on January 22, 1998.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The decision of the Second District Court of Appeal in this case adds further elements to the requirements that a defendant must follow to preserve error involving the denial of a strike of a juror for cause. The issue involves the preservation of a denial of a motion to strike a juror for cause. Petitioner followed this Court's ruling in <u>Trotter</u> by requesting additional peremptory challenges and by naming particular jurors that he wished to strike with those challenges. The district court by requiring an additional objection is in conflict with this Court's decision in <u>Trotter</u> and should be reviewed.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE

WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT IN THE INSTANT CASE CON-FLICTS WITH THE OPINION OF THIS COURT IN <u>TROTTER V. STATE</u>, 576 So. 2d 1120 (Fla. 1990).

The opinion of the Second District is in conflict with this Court's opinion in <u>Trotter v. State</u>, 576 So. 2d 691 (Fla. 1990). This Court stated in <u>Trotter</u> that:

> Under Florida law, 'to show reversible error, a defendant must show that all that all peremptories have been exhausted and that an objectionable juror had to be accepted.' Pentecost <u>v. State</u>, 545 So. 2d 861, 863 n. 1 (Fla. 1989). By this we mean the following. Where a defendant seeks reversal based upon a claim that he was wrongfully forced to exhaust his peremptory challenges, he initially must identify a specific juror whom he otherwise would have struck peremptorily. The juror must be an individual who actually sat on the jury and whom the defendant either challenged for cause or attempted to challenge peremptorily or otherwise objected to after his peremptorily challenges had been exhausted.

Trial counsel followed each of the steps mandated in <u>Trotter</u> but the second district ruled the matter was not properly preserved for appeal.¹ Adding yet another step to the mix, the Second District found that the contemporaneous objection rule required trial

¹ In order to preserve such an error, the defendant must use all his peremptory, request an additional challenge, and identify the objectionable juror he would strike. See <u>Trotter v. State</u>, 576 So. 2d 691, 693 (Fla. 1990). Hammond did request additional peremptory challenges and identify jurors he would strike, but his basis for doing so was not the court's denial of his request to strike Ms. Mulligan. <u>Hammond v. State</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D204 (Fla. 2d DCA January 15, 1999).

counsel to mention Ms. Mulligan as the basis for requesting more peremptories. The Second District even admits it could find no cases that require a defendant to specifically state that he is requesting the additional peremptories because the court did not grant his motion to strike a particular juror for cause.

But the same district court in Jones v. State, 660 So. 2d 291, 293 (Fla. 2d DCA 1995), referring to Trotter, noted that it was not important that the defendant was not allowed to strike a particular additional juror but it was important that the denial of the cause challenge of a juror "forced Jones to exhaust his peremptory challenges on these individuals who should have been This Court affirmed Mr. Trotter's appeal excused for cause." concerning the issue of jury selection because counsel "failed to object to any venireperson who ultimately was seated." Trotter, at 693. Trial counsel for Petitioner did request additional peremptory challenges and specifically named three jurors who stated they had doubts whether they could be fair. If counsel was forced to exhaust his peremptory challenges to strike a juror that should have been struck for cause, the error was not harmless. Huber v. State, 669 So. 2d 1079 (Fla. 4th DCA 1996).

In his concurring opinion in <u>Milstein v. Mutual Security</u>, 705 So. 2d 639 (Fla. 3d DCA 1998), Judge Sorondo began his opinion with the premise that "jury selection is the most significant stage of any trial." Citing <u>Hill v. State</u>, 477 So. 2d 553 (Fla.), <u>cert</u> <u>denied</u>, 485 U.S. 993, 108 S.Ct. 1302, 99 L.Ed.2d 512 (1988) and Trotter, <u>ibid</u>, for the proposition the "improper denial of a motion

4

to excuse a juror for cause is reversible error, if the error is properly preserved. Considering the cases of <u>Jones</u>, <u>Trotter</u>, and <u>Hill</u>, Judge Sorondo considered the following to properly preserve the issue for review:

 A timely motion to strike the juror for cause,
The improper denial of the motion,
The exhaustion of all peremptory challenges during the jury selection process,
A request for additional peremptory challenges,
An identification of the juror(s) to be stricken with the additional challenge(s),
The denial of the request for additional challenges, and
The objectional jury must actually serve on the jury.

There is no requirement that the Petitioner reiterate that the basis for requesting the additional jurors was the trial court's denial of Ms. Mulligan. The Petitioner was wrongly denied a cause challenge and then named certain jurors that he would have peremptorily struck had he not exhausted his peremptory challenges. The Petitioner attempted to follow the spirit of <u>Trotter</u> by requesting more peremptories and naming jurors he would strike, Petitioner would believe any attempt to again bring Juror Mulligan to the attention of the trial court would have been a futile gesture. <u>Mercer v. State</u>, 40 Fla. 216, 24 So. 154 (1898).

Because the decision in the instant case conflicts with the decisions of this Court, this Court should exercise its jurisdiction to review the decision of the Second District in this case.

5

CONCLUSION

For the above reasons, the Petitioner respectfully requests that this Honorable Court accept jurisdiction to review his case.