ORIGINAL

FIL

SID J. Will

FEB 10 1999.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

GUY HAMMOND,

Petitioner,

v.

FSC No.94,780

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL STATE OF FLORIDA

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

ROBERT J. KRAUSS Senior Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0238538

PATRICIA E. DAVENPORT Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0228796 2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 700 Tampa, Florida 33607-2366 (813) 873-4739

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner's statement of the case and facts is substantially accurate for the purpose of this jurisdictional brief.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This Court does not have jurisdiction to hear the instant case because the district court opinion does not expressly and directly conflict with the opinion cited by Petitioner.

ARGUMENT

BECAUSE THE OPINION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL DOES NOT "EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY" CONFLICT WITH THE PRIOR DECISIONS OF ANOTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OR THE SUPREME COURT ON THE SAME QUESTION OF LAW, THIS COURT SHOULD DECLINE TO EXERCISE DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO CONSIDER THIS APPEAL.

Petitioner asserts that the Court has jurisdiction to hear his case because the district court's decision conflicts with <u>Trotter v. State</u>, 576 So. 2d 691 (Fla. 1990). Respondent disagrees, asserting that this Court should not entertain jurisdiction in the instant case because the cases cited by Petitioner are not in direct and express conflict with the second district's decision in his case.

Article V, § 3(b) (3) of the Florida Constitution, and Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a) (2) (A) (iv), provide that this Court may review decisions of a district court of appeal "that expressly and directly conflict with a decision of . . . the supreme court on the same question of law." The alleged conflict between decisions "must be express and direct" and "must appear within the four corners of the majority decision." Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986). The Court has explained that "express" means "to represent in words" and "to give expression to." Jenkins v. State, 385 So. 2d 1356, 1359 (Fla.

1980).

In <u>Ansin v. Thurston</u>, 101 So. 2d 808 (Fla. 1958), the Court explained the nature of the conflict required:

"A conflict of decisions . . . must be on a question of law involved and determined, and such that one decision would overrule the other if both were rendered by the same court; in other words, the decisions must be based practically on the same state of facts and announce antagonistic conclusions." 21 C.J.S. Courts s 462.

Ansin, 101 So. 2d at 811. Thus, for there to be direct conflict the factual scenarios in each case must be identical, with the respective courts reaching opposing holdings.

"A limitation of review to decisions in 'direct conflict' clearly evinces a concern with decisions as precedents as opposed to adjudications of the rights of particular litigants." Id. As this Court also pointed out in Ansin:

[i]t was never intended that the district courts of appeal should be intermediate courts. The revision and modernization of the Florida judicial system at the appellate level was prompted by the great volume of cases reaching the Supreme Court and the consequent delay in the administration of justice. new article embodies throughout its terms the idea of a Supreme Court which functions as a supervisory body in the judicial system for State, exercising appellate power in certain specified areas essential to the settlement of issues of public importance and the preservation of uniformity of principle and practice, with review by the district courts in most instances being final and absolute.

Ansin, 101 So. 2d at 810.

A review of the second district's decision below indicates a conflict when compared direct and express Trotter, supra. In Trotter this Court explained what a defendant had to do to show reversible error when a trial court refused to excuse a prospective juror for cause. The Second District did not stray from the holding in Trotter, but clarified that to preserve that type of error the objection should place the trial court on notice of a possible error, thereby providing an opportunity to correct it. In the instant case, as detailed by the district court Petitioner failed to preserve the issue for review. Since the Second District properly applied <u>Trotter</u>, there is no conflict. <u>See</u> Dep't of Health and Rehabilitative Serv. v. Nat'l Adoption Counseling Serv., Inc., 498 So. 2d 888 (Fla. 1986) (in which the Court stated that "implied" conflict may not serve as a basis for jurisdiction).

Respondent respectfully requests that the Court decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in the instant case as Petitioner has failed to demonstrate the existence of direct and express conflict with the decisions of this Court.

¹It should be noted that Petitioner also failed to raise any objection prior to accepting the jury. <u>Joiner v. State</u>, 618 so. 2d 174 (Fla. 1993).

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing reasons, arguments, and citations to authority, this Honorable Court should decline to exercise jurisdiction to consider the instant appeal.